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|7.. DESCRIPTION

(Check One)
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CONDITION (Check One) (Check One)
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL ({if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

On the north side of Stephen Decatur Memorial Road, Mary-
land Route 611, on Lower Sinepuxent Neck in Worcester County,
approximately nine miles south of United States Route 50,
stands a two-and-one-<half story brick building on "Genesar"
tract. The house is in very poor condition but is being
stabilized for future restoration.

The Architectural Historian and authority on transitional
Maryland architecture, Dr. Henry Chandler Forman, FAIA,
frequently cites this building as having some of the most
unique pattern brickwork diapering in Maryland. It has exten-

|sive:. diamond and chevron glazed@ brickwork patterns, which are

covered with a nineteenth century thin coat of stucco. As
transitional architecture, it. represents the hold-over forms of
mediaeval work and the earliest development towards the more
formal Georgian ideals in plan and design. Dr. Forman records
drawings of the unique interior woodwork which has been removed.
Because of these unusual architectural features it is considered
an important early Maryland building.

Its 1971 appearance is little more than a ruin. The south
facade is braced with poles extending from a trench in front

of the house to the second floor level. A portion of brickwork
in the east corner has fallen away, from the ground level to
the roof only a few frames remain at the windows and doors.
Temporary supports have been installed to deter further decay.
Large ;portions of the main cornice remain in place and the
chimneys are structurally sound above the roof.

Originally, the south facade, forty-five feet in length,
had four bays at the first floor level and three bays at the
second floor level, symetrically placed. The two center bays
of the first story were formerly doors, one leading into the
stair passage, the other into the "Great Room". The first
story of the north side was similar, but had only two windows
on the second story. It had one small window at the stair
landing -level.

Each gable end, 19 feet 3 1/2 inches wide, had small win-
Jows at the first and second floor levels flanking the fire-
places at each floor level. On the gable at the attic floor
level there is a projecting belt course, above which is glazed
diapering. The "A" roof, pitched 51 degrees, has a "kick" to
the eave. Originally there were three dormers on the south
front, matching the one existing dormer on the north side of
the roof.

The interior originally had two large rooms, approximately
15 feet by 16 feet and 18 feet by 16 feet, opening from either
-see continuation sheet-
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The house is the only: currently known structure of its
‘type on the Eastern Shore of Maryland. It is in very poor
condition and is in danger: of vandals and the elements. The
present owner plans to form an organization to restore the
building. It is only two miles from the visitors' center of
the Assateague National Seashore, therefore the structure
could be a potential tourist attraction as well as a credit-
able addition to the annual Maryland House and Garden Pil-
grimage.

The original Genezir land patent, consisting of 2,200
acres was granted to Colonel William Stevens in 1676. He was
appointed one of the eight commanders of the Eastern Shore in
1665; one of eight justices for Somerset County in 1666,
which county then consisted of the present counties of Somer—
set, Worcester, and WicomiCo. In 1669, he was the represen-
tative for Somerset County to thec Maryland General Assembly.
He is sometimes referred to as the first citizen of Somerset
County. Although a member of the Church of England, he was
partially responsible for the introduction of Presbyterianism
in Maryland. He resided at his plantation "Rehoboth", on the
Pocomoke River.

In 1681, Colonel Stevens sold Genezir to Edward Whaley
and Charles Ratcliffe, who'in turn divided the land into two
equal parts of 1,100 acres each, Ratcliffe taking possession
of the part on which the house now stands. Charles Ratcliffe
left his dwelling plantation (700 acres)- to his son Charles Jr.
in 1696, who later left it to his only daughter, Elizabeth
(1709).

John Purnell and Elizabeth Ratcliffe were married in 1719,
thus bringing the property into the Purnell family. It is
believed that the present brick house was constructed during
this period, c. 1732. 1In 1754 John Purnell willed the property
to his son Zadock, who at his death, willed it to his daughter,
Sally M. Spence, and after her death, to his grandson, Zadock
Spence. In 1867 it was sold to Zadock P. Henry, in

-see continuation sheet-
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'.96. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS continued
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1969
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94 College Avenue
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 Code: 24

Perry, Shaw, and Hepburn Survey
1951
Maryland Historical Trust

94 College Avenue :
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 Code: 24

#7. DESCRIPTION continued .

side of a central passage from which a staircase rises. The
ceiling joists were exposed with molded edges. There was !
probably a partition parallel with the front of the fireplace,
creating closets beside the fireplace, which would have been
lighted by the small windows in the gable wall, according to
local practice. The second story rooms had similar treatment
but had plaster ceilinas, as the beams are unmolded. Photo-
graphs and drawings are extant for the !"Great Room Chamber"
(second story west room), which had three walls with raised
paneling. The fireplace wall was plastered, with closet doors
and a Federal style mantel.

The main staircase was enclosed, creating a need for the
small window recently discovered beneath the stucco on the north
facade. The brick wall is one brick thinner in the east corner,
and formerly had a small enclosed winding staircase. The small
windows were placed so that each closet and passage had a source
of light. _

In the early nineteenth century, the east staircase was
removed. At the same time the enclosure of the central stair-
case was removed and it was refitted with Federal style spandrels
and balustrade. The fireplaces appear to have been altered and

(1 of 2 continuation sheets)
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£7. DESCRIPTION continued

¥
i

the decorative ceiling beams covered with a board ceiling. The

windows, and trimmed accordinqgly. Secveral of the small gable
windows were also bricked-up. An ornate moulded cornice with
dentils and swags was installed on the south facade, as it
appears today.

) At the East end of the house lie the foundations of an early
kitchen. Photographs taken in the 1930s show a brick structure
of later date than the main house.

N

two exterior doors in the "Great Room" were bricked-up, made into

#8. SIGNIFICANCE continued
whose family it remained until 1939.

The present owner purchased a few acres and the house in 1966
from the Lamar Corporation. : '

#9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES continued

Forman, Henry Chandlee. Tidewater Maryland Architecturc
and Gardens. New York: Bonanza Books, 1956.
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house, Snow Hill, Maryland.

Works Progress Administration. Maryland A Guide to the
0l1d Line State. New York: Oxford, 1940.

Worcester County Tax Assessors map #50, Parcel 27. Liber
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1. Ma - HISTORIC AMERICAN BUILDINGS SURVEY
Sc:)t;«iv ryland ' INVENTORY WO = 3
Worcester County
TOWN VICINITY ) Geﬂesaf‘
. M
STREET NO. S:n?puxent Neck, east of |"M™ (Genezir)
DATE OR PERIOD !732

ORIGINAL OWNER Pypnel | Family

ORIGINAL USE s STYLE Transitional
- Dwe ',.' tng ARCHITECT
PRESENT OWN “f‘o s 1""8. Donald F- BUILDER
PRESENT USE Yacant Humphrey
WALL CONSTRUCTION  Ruiohe 3. FOR LIBRARY OF CONGRESS USE
NO. OF STORIES 2-1/2
4. NOTABLE FEATURES, HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND DESCRIPTION OPEN 70 PUBLIC
v ———

East of Berlin, at the end of Sinepuxent Neck, stands “Genesar”
or "Genezir”. It is a 2=1/2 story brick structure, four bays
wide and two bays deep, in very poor condition.

The unusual diamond~shaped parallelogram and chevron brick-
work pattens, called "diapering” extend to all facades. The
glazed headers are s green~black color laid in Flemish bond

partially hidden by stucco. The brick chimney caps are
handsome,

The architectural writer, Mr. Henry Chandlee Forman, frequently
cites this building as having some of the most unique examplag
of patteﬁﬁéd brickwork in Maryland. In the "transition” stylc*ag
of arcﬁﬁtecturc, it represents the hold-over forms of mediaeval:
work and the earliest development towards the more formal
Georgian ideas in plan and design. Forman records drawings

of its unique interior woodwork which has been taken away by
vandals,

The sash and doors are missings. The interior has little of
the woodwork left. The two central bays of the furst floor

(contcnued on reverse side)
5. PHYSACAL CONDITION OF STRUCTURE  Endangered Interior Exterior

@ﬁ

L

@ 6. LOCATION MAP (Plan Optional) 7. PHOTOGRAPH

3. PUBLISHED SOURCES (Author, Title, Pages) « NAME, ADDRESS AND TITLE OF RECORDER
INTERVIEWS, RECORDS, PHOTOS, ETC.

Forman, Henry Chandlee - tarl Michael 0, 80urne.
“‘30”65 P""taﬁégg Houses :o Maryland Historical Trust

Tidewater Maryland rchitecture
and Gardens K | oate oF recore January 22, 1968
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were doors, leading into a stair hall and living room.
There were two small windows on each gable~end. There
~are only three remaining windows on the second floor, and
evidence of three dormers in the roof on the front of the
house, ‘ :

The house recently haé becﬁ purchased and the present
owner hopes to restore it,

Patented in 1676 to William Stevens, it was assigned
to Edward Whaley and Charles Ratcliffe in 1679.

" John Purnell married Eljzabeth Ratcliffe =« Charles’
sister - and the widow of Edward Whaley. Purnell is
supposed to have built the house around 1732, It
passed to the Henry family in 1867 and remained in
that family until 1939.
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